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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of JSW Steel Processing Centres Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of J5W Steel Processing Centres
Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance shest as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our informatien and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2019, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (5As), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under thase
Standards are further described in the *Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial
Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code
of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial
statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 35 of the financial statements which describe the effects of the matters
to restate the financial information as at April 1, 2017 and as at and for the year ended March 31,
2018. In our opinion, such adjustments are appropriate and have been properly applied. We further
state that we were not engaged to audit, review or apply any procedures to the financial information
of the Company either as at April 1, 2017 or as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018 aother than
with respect to the aforesaid adjustments and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or review
conclusion or any other form of assurance on the financial information as at April 1, 2017 and for
the year ended March 31, 2018 as a whole. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the information included in the Director's Report, but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.
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Qur opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information s materially inconsistant with
the financial statements or our knawledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the
Corpany or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and cbtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
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resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 1430330 of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

> Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safequards,

Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018 prepared
in accordance with Ind AS, included in these Ind AS financial statements, prior to giving effect to the
adjustment described in Note 35 to these IND AS financial statements, have been audited by the
predecessor auditor who had audited the financial statements for the relevant period. The report of
the predecessor auditor on the comparative financial information dated April 24, 2018 expressed an
unmodified opinion.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by the

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the "Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

L= O( so far as it appears from our examination of those books:

21 MUBBA
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/f’-:d;ﬂ {(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
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The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards} Rules, 2015, as amended:

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors ason March 31, 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2019 has been
paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section
197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 26 to the Ind AS financial statements;

li. ~ The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company.
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date

)]

(i)

(i)

{iv)

(v}

(vi)

(vii}

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but
there is a reqular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no
immovable properties, included in property, plant and equipment of the Company and
accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Campany.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iil)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
loans, investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of section
185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the
rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to its services, and are of the opinion that prima
facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not,
however, made a detailed examination of the same.

(a) The Company is reqular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of
excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to
it. The provisions relating to employees’ state insurance are not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, service tax,
sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and
other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.
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(c) According to the records of the Company, the dues of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,
duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax and cess on account of any dispute, are as
follows:

Mame of the | Nature of the | Amount Period te | Forum where the
statute dues (Rs in | which the | dispute is pending
lacs) amount
relates

The  Finance | Service Tax £14.18 | 2009-10  to | CESTAT, Bangalore

Act, 1994 (Valuation) 2013-14
31.49 | 2014-15 CESTAT, Bangalore
3494 | 2015-16 Commissioner of

Central Excise

(Appeals), Belgaum
The Central | Excise Duty 264.16 | Mar 2008 to | CESTAT, Bangalore
Excise Act, | (CENVAT Sept 2008
1944 Credit)

The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowing dues in respect of a financial
institution or bank or to government or dues to debenture holders during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not raised any money way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments) and
term loans hence, reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the Ind AS financial statements and according to the information and explanations
given by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the
Company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated
by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013,

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefare, the provisions of clause 3(xii)
of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon,

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the Ind AS financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the balance sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review
and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company
and, not commented upon.
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(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as
referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.

(xvi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-14 of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company,

ForSEBCE&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reqgistration Number: 324982E/E300003

Y

per Suresh Yadav

Partner

Membership Number: 119878
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 6, 2019
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Ind AS financial statements
of JSW Steel Processing Centres Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of JSW Steel Processing
Centres Limited (“the Company") as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the vear ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance MNote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Cwver Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and,
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Cur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls aver financial reporting with reference to these
Ind AS financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Ind AS
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control aver financial reparting with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with autharisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to
these Ind AS Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reparting with
reference to these Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls aver financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk
that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adeguate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

ForSRBCR&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003
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per suresh Yadav ||||If'_|I MUMBA|
Partner QI— \

Membership Mumber: 119&??8 \\\\{(\\\
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 6, 2019



I5W STEEL PROCESSING CENTRES LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019

CIN: UDO1010MH2003PLEL 76595 _Rs. in lacs
Hiitaé As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 * 01 April 2017*
L. ASSETS
Mon-currént assets
{a) Property, plant and equipment 4 7.626.64 B,046.42 559764
(b} Financial assets - [Avestments 5 - 0.10 0.10
(e}  Current tax assets (net) 77,10 266.30 281.64
[d] Other non-current assets i 17.70 13.47 803
Total non - current assets 7,721.44 8,326.29 8837.41
Current assets
{a} Inventaries T 1,012.23 87161 1,023.79
(b} Financial assets
1] Investments B - 10,314.85 -
iy Trade receivables 9 1,934.88 2,093.22 3,316.36
iii)  Cash and cash equivalents 104 7135 55.15 444,88
i-.r:l Bark balances other than (ili) above 108 39.11 39.11 541382
Other financials assets 11 65.05 69.21 B4.08
(e} Dther current assets 12 _108.08 133.35 305.65
Total current assets 3,936.70 _13,576.50 10,788.38
M 11,658.14 “!ggl?! lg ﬂg,?‘g
.  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a} Equity share capital 13 5.000.00 5,000.00 5.000.00
b} Other equity 14 4, 926.90 14 712.46 12,179.07
| Total equity 5,926.90 19,712 46 17,179.07
Non - current liabilities
{a] Provisions 15 100,47 B3.00 93,15
{b} Deferred tax liabilities (net) 32 1,157.10 1,142.89 1,259.07
Total non - current liabilitios 1,257.57 1,226.88 1,352.22
Current liabilities
[a) Financial liabilities
i} Trade payables 16
a) Total outstanding, dues of micre and small - 9.69 10.52
gnterprises
b) Total outstanding, dues of creditors other 272.98 508,19 611,57
than micro and small enterprises
ii) Other financial liabilities 17 56.67 62.28 7.98
(b) Other current liabilities 18 54.30 129.55 7115
[h  Current tax liabllities {net) 44,94 249.76 438.53
{d} Pravisions 149 4.78 3.58 4.75
Total current liabilities 473.67 363.45 1,144.50
Total llabilities 1,731.24 _2,190.33 2.8%6.72
T ity and liabll 11,658, 21,902.79 19,675.79 |

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
" Restated |refer note 35)

As per our report of even date
ForSRBCECOLLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Mumber: 3249 E300003
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per SURESH YADAV
Partner
Membership Mo, 119878

Place : Mumbai
Date : 06 May 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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SANJAY JAYRAM UMESH RAJ
Director Director

L
ANJANEYALU CHITLOOR MANISH MATHUR
Chief Financial Officar Company Secretary
Place : Mumbal

Date ; 06 May 2019



I5W STEEL PROCESSING CENTRES LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31 March 2019

CIN: UO1010MHZ003PLCITES95 Rs In Laes
Far the year ended For the year ended
Naotes
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 *
I. Revenue from contracts with customers 20 5,454.83 5,635.46
Il.  Other income 21 215.59 502.56
lll.  Total Income (1+1) 5,670.42 5,138.02
V.  Expenses:
Changes in inventaries of finished goods 22 - 831,88
Employee benefits expense 3 376.25 472,48
Finance costs 24 0.44 46.22
Depreciation and amaortisation expenses 4 403.90 561.56
Other expensas 25 1,633.28 1,569.43
Total expenses 2,413.87 2,733.57
V.  Profit before tax (lll-Iv) 3,256.55 3,404.45
VI. Tax expense: 32
Current tax 956,88 957.47
Deferred tax 13.15 {116.03)
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 13.48 2
983.51 871.44
VIl Profit for the year (WV-VI) 2,273.04 2,533.01
Vill. Other comprehensive income 31
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(@) Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (3.67) 0.53
(b} Income tax related to items that will not ba reclassified 1.07 {0.15)
to profit or loss
Total other comprehensive income (2.60) 0.38
IX. Total comprehensive income for the year W1+ 2,270.44 2,533.39
X.  Earnings per equity share of Rs. 10 each 36
Basic {In Rs) 4.55 5.07
Diluted (In Rs) 4.55 s.a7

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
* Restated (refer note 35)

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC& COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 324982€/E300003
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per SURESH YADAVY
Partner
Membership Mo, 119878

Place : Mumbai
Date : 06 May 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

%ﬁ;bh;/ D—>

SANIAY JAYRAM URESH RAI
Director Director

.,
AMNJANEYALU CHITLOOR MNISH MATHUR
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date : 06 May 2019



I5W STEEL PROCESSING CENTRES LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2019

CIN: UO1010MH2003PLC176595 Rs. in lacs
For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 3,256.55 3,404.45
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 403,90 561.56
Finance cost 0.44 45,22
Unrealised Foreign exchange loss/(gain) 0.28 0.04
Provision [ liabilities no longer required written back {53.58) {31.12)
Interest incorme (3.21) (349.58)
MNet gain on fair valuation of investments through profit or loss - (49.26)
Met gain on sale of investments (158.61) {72.59)
Loss on discard of Property Pant and Equipment 15.88 =
205.10 105.27
Operating profit before working capital changes 3,461.65 3,509.72
Adjustments for:
Decrease / (Increasa) in Inventories (140.62) 152.18
Decrease in trade receivables 158.34 1,223.14
Decreass in other assets 28.00 38173
(Decrease) / Increase in trade payables and other liabilities (232.46) 47.55
(Decrease) / Increase in provision 13.24 (5.40)
Cash flow from operations (173.50) 1,795.20
 Income tax paid (including interest) 1983.92) (1,174.97)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 2,304.23 4,129.95
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant & equipment (18.32)
Bank deposits not considered as cash and cash eguivalents (net) - 5,374.51
Interest received 0.41 345.58
Purchase of current investments 19,310.80) (25,454.49)
Sale proceeds of current investments 19,784.36 15,271.4%
Loan to related party - {10,000.00)
Loan repaid by related party 10,000.00
Net cash generated from [ {used) in investing activities (B) 10,473.97 (4,487.23)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Interest paid - {32.45)
Dividend paid (including dividend distribution tax) {12,056.00) -
Net cash used in financing activities (C ) (12,056.00) (32.45)
Net increase/(decrease] in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) 722.20 (389.73)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 55,15 444,88
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note 10{A)) 777.35 55.15

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Motes :

1. The statement of cash flow is prepared using the “Indirect Method" set out in IND AS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows

ForSRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003
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JSW Steel Processing Centres Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2019
CIN: UO1010MH2003PLC176595

(a)

(b)

Equity share capital Rs in Lacs
As on 01 April 2017 Movement during year As on 31 March 2018 Movement during year  As at 31 March 2019
5000.00 - 5000.00 - 5000.00
Other equity Rs. In lacs
Particulars Reserves and surplus Total equity
Retained earnings

Balance at 01 April 2017* 12,179.07 12,179.07
Profit for the year 2,533.01 2,533.01
Other comprehensive income for the vear 0.38 0.38
Balance at 31 March 2018* 14,712.46 14,712.46
Profit for the year 2,273.04 2,273.04
Dividend including dividend distribution tax {12,056.00) (12,056.00)
Other comprehensive income for the year {2.60) (2.60)
Balance at 31 March 2019 4,926.90 4,926.90

* Restated {refer note 35)
See accompanying notes to the financial statements

ForSRBCE COLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reglstration Number: 324982E/E300003
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J5W S5TEEL PROCESSING CENTRES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

1.

2.

3.

General Information

ISW Steel Processing Centres Limited (the "Company”} is an unlisted public limited company incorporated in India on
16 December 2003 under the Companies Act, 1956 with its registered office located at JSW Centre, Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400 051, The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of JSW Steel
Limited (the "Parent Company®).

The Company is mainly engaged in cutting and slitting of large Hot Rolled (HR) and Cold Rolled (CR) coils into small Hot
Rolled (HR) and Cold Rolled (CR) coils as per the specific requirements of the customers of JSW Steel Limited under the
long-term arrangement. Company's manufacturing facilities are located at Toranagallu, Karnataka.

Applicability of new and revised Ind AS:

MNew standard issued but not yet effective

Ind A5 116 Leases was notified by MCA on 30 March 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices
thereto. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases
under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17. The standard
includes two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-
term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will
recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise
the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in
the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the re-measurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from today's accounting under Ind AS 17. Lessars will
continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in Ind AS 17 and distinguish between two types
of leases: operating and finance leases,

The Company intends to adopt these standards from 1 April 2019, As the Company does not have any material leases,
therefore the adoption of this standard is not likely to have a material impact in its Financial Statements,

Significant Accounting policies

- Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, the Statements of Cash Flow and the Statements of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March
2019, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (together
hereinafter referred to as “Financial Statements”) have been prepared in accordance accounting principles
generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) prescribed under the section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.

The Financial Statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors in its meeting held on & May
2019,
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JSW STEEL PROCESSING CENTRES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

-  Basis of preparation and presentation

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting year, as explained In the accounting policies below.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company
takes in to account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of ind AS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realizable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1,2, or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurements in its entirety, which are described as follows:

* Level 1inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

* Llevel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly: and
* Level 3 inputs are unobservahble inputs for the asset or liability.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR') and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs,
except otherwise stated.

Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
® itis expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating
cycle. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded:
* itis expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; ar

* itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
* |tis expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle:
® itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
* it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date: or the Company does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date,

Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of
equity instruments do not affect its classification.




JSW STEEL PROCESSING CENTRES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

.

Revenue from contract with customer

Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, became mandatory for reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2018 replaces the existing revenue recognition standards. The Company has applied the full
retrospective approach and restated the previous periods presented.

The Company recognizes revenue when contral over the promised goods or services is transferred to the customer
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those
Eoods or services.

The amount of revenue excludes any amount collected on behalf of third parties.

The Company recognizes revenue generally at the point in time when the products are delivered to customer or
when it is delivered to a carrier for export sale, which is when the control over product is transferred to the
customer. In contracts where freight is arranged by the Company and recovered from the customers, the same is
treated as a separate performance obligation and revenue is recognized when such freight services are rendered.

In revenue arrangements with multiple performance obligations, the Company accounts for individual products
and services separately if they are distinct —=l.e. ifa product or service is separately identifiable from other items in
the arrangement and if a customer can benefit from it. The consideration is allocated between separate products
and services in the arrangement based on their standalone selling prices.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the
lessor are recognised as operating leases.

Lease rentals under operating leases are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct cost incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on straight-line basis over the lease term,

Foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company is determined on the basis of the primary economic environment in which
it operates. The functional currency of the Company is Indian National Rupee (INR).

The transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting year, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Mon-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date

when the fair value was determined, Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated,

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they

arise except for;

* exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs on those foreign currency barrowings;

. f_xchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks.
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J5W STEEL PROCESSING CENTRES LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

IV. Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they are incurred.

The Company determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation as the actual borrowing costs
incurred on that borrowing during the year less any interest income earned on temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets, to the extent that an entity borrows funds specifically
for the purpose of abtaining a qualifying asset. In case if the Company borrows generally and uses the funds for
obtaining a qualifying asset, borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation are determined by applying a capitalisation
rate to the expenditures on that asset.

Borrowing Cost includes exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are
regarded as an adjustment to the finance cost.

V. Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the
conditions attached to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the years in
which the Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate or
when performance obligations are met.

Vl. Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit
credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting year. Re-
measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset celling {if applicable)
and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately in the statement of financial position
with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the year in which they occur. Re-
measurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will
not be reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the year of a plan amendment
or when the company recognizes corresponding restructuring cost whichever is earlier, Met interest is calculated

by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as
follows:

> service cost {including current service cost, past service cost, as wel| as gains and losses on curtailments and
settlements);

#  netinterest expense or income; and
*  re-measurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item
f:;Er__n_pInyee benefits expenses’. Curtailment Eains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.
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J5W STEEL PROCESSING CENTRES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the statement of financial position represents the actual deficit or
surplus in the Company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present
value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future
cantributions to the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer
of the termination benefit and when the entity recognises any related restructuring costs.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick
leave in the year the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the
estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date.

Vil. Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax
Current tax is the amount of expected tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year as determined in
accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit,
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible ternporary
differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting year and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the
form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an deferred tax asset if there is convincing
evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance
Sheet when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting year.
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JSW STEEL PROCESSING CENTRES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Vil

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate ta the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax for the vear

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they are relating to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the
business combination.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the relevant entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Property, plant and equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates,
any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any
directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for Its intended use, including relevant borrowing costs
for qualifying assets and any expected costs of decommissioning. Expenditure incurred after the property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the year in which the costs are incurred. Major shut-down and overhaul expenditure is
capitalised as the activities undertaken improves the economic benefits expected to arise from the asset.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Assets in the course of construction are capitalised in the assets under construction account. At the point when an
asset is operating at management's intended use, the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment and depreciation commences. Costs associated with the commissioning
of an asset and any obligatary decommissioning costs are capitalised where the asset is available for use but

incapable of operating at normal levels until a year of commissioning has been completed. Revenue generated
from production during the trial period is capitalised.

Property, plant and equipment except freehold land held for use in the production, supply or administrative

purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised

in the financial statements on transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed
cost as at the date of transition.

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated
residual value. Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and
properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using straight-line method as per
the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of following categories of
assets, in whose case the life of the assets has been assessed as under based on technical advice, taking into
account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past
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J5W STEEL PROCESSING CENTRES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance support,
etc.

Class of assets Years
Plant and equipment 5 to 35 years

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates
them separately based on their specific useful lives.

Major overhaul costs are depreciated over the estimated life of the economic benefit derived from the overhaul.
The carrying amount of the remaining previous overhaul cost is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss if the
next overhaul is undertaken earlier than the previously estimated life of the economic benefit.

The Company reviews the useful lives, residual value and depreciation method annually and, if expectations differ
from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate on a prospective basis.

Impairment of Property, plant and equipment

At the end of each reporting year, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current

market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value,

Cost of raw materials include cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to thair present
location and condition. Cost of finished goods and work in progress include cost of direct materials and labor and a
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs.

Costs of inventories are determined on weighted average basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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J5W STEEL PROCESSING CENTRES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
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Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive), as a result of past
events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle
such an obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount
is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous
contract is considered to exist where the Company has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the contract.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL)) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
are recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

A. Financial assets
a) Recognition and initial measurement

A financial asset is initially recognised at fair value and, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on

the trade date, which is the date on which the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

b} Classification of financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is measured at ameortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI) or FVTPL,

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is nat designated
at FVTPL:

* The asset is held within a business model whase abjective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
. flows; and




J5W STEEL PROCESSING CENTRES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

® The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt instrument is classified as FVTOC! only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not recognised at
FVTPL;

* The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

* The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at
fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income [OCI). However, the
Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OC
is reclassified from the equity to Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FYTOC! debt
instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for
trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103
applies are classified as at FVTPL, For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable
election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes
such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made an initial recognition and is
irrevocable.,

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCl. There is no recycling of the amounts from OC| to
Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL.

In addition, on initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets
the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTOC! as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces and accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting year, with any gains and losses
arising on remeasurement recognized in statement of prafit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in statement
of profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the "other
income’ line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognized when:

*  The Company's right to receive the dividends is established,
* Itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividends will flow to the entity,

* The dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of
dividend can be measured reliably.
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I5W STEEL PROCESSING CENTRES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
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c) Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
party.

d} Impairment

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured
at amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade recelvables, other contractual rights to
receive cash or other financial asset, and financial guarantees not designated as at FVTPL,

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls),
discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial assets). The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms
of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life
of that financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected
credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month
expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls

that will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shartfalls that
are predicted over the next 12 months.

If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model in the
previous year, but determines at the end of a reporting year that the credit risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compared to the previous year, the Company again
measures the loss allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial
Instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that assessment, the Company
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and
supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in
credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, the Company always measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses,

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company
has used a practical expedient as permitted under ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed

based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-
looking information.
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J5W STEEL PROCESSING CENTRES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally applied to debt
instruments at FVTOC! except that the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and is not
reduced from the carrying amount in the balance sheet

&) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant year. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter year, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified
as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognized in profit or loss and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

B. Financial liabilities and equity instruments

a) Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liahility and an
equity instrument.

b) Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all

of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs,

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or

loss is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's
own equity instruments.

¢} Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL or ‘other financial llabilities',

Financial liabilities at FVTPL:

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated
as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

* Ithas been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

* oninitial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

* itisa derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument,

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

® such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise;




JSW STEEL PROCESSING CENTRES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

X,

XIv,

* the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company's
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; ar :

= it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109 permits the
entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109,

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised
in Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any
interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss. For Liabilities designated
as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in QCI,

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss,

Other financial liabilities:

The Company enters into deferred payment arrangements (acceptances) whereby overseas lenders such as banks
and other financial institutions make payments to supplier's banks for import of raw materials and property, plant
and equipment. The banks and financial institutions are subsequently repaid by the Company at a later date
providing working capital benefits, These arrangements are in the nature of credit extended in normal operating
cycle and these arrangements for raw materials are recognized as Acceptances (under trade payables} and
arrangements for property, plant and equipment are recognised as other financial liabilities. Interest borne by the
company on such arrangements is accounted as finance cost, Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and
trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liahilities:

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different
terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial
liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not
attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Earnings per share:

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share ("EPS") data for its equity shares. Basic earnings per
share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to equity

shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

S pnci
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J5W STEEL PROCESSING CENTRES LIMITED
MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

- Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the course of applying the policies outlined in all notes under section 2 above, the Company is required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of
the revision and future year, if the revision affects current and future year.

i)

i)

iii}

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
Management reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at least once a year. Such lives are

dependent upon an assessment of both the technical lives of the assets and also their likely economic lives
based on various internal and external factors including relative efficiency and operating costs. Accordingly,
depreciable lives are reviewed annually using the best information available to the Management.

Contingencies
In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against

the Company. Potential liabilities that are possible but not probable of crystalizing or are very difficult to
quantify reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not
recognized.

Fair value measurements
When the fair values of financial assets or financial liabilities recorded or disclosed in the financial

statements cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured
using valuation technigques including the DCF model, The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair
values. Judgements include consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and valatility.
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I5W Steel Processing Centres Limited
Notes to the Financial Statement as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

Mote 5 ; Investments (Non-current) Rs. in lacs
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 8 01 April
Investment In Government,/{Unquoted) securities (at amortised cost)
National savings certificates (Pledged with commercial tax department) 0.0 0.10
Total - 0.10 0.10
Mote: Aggregate carrying value of unguoted investments 010 0.10
Mote 6 : Other non-current assets (unsecured considered good) Rs. in lacs
Particulars As at As at As at
31 M 2019 31 Mar 01 0
Indirect tax balances {pald under protest) 17.70 _13.47 8.03
Total 17.70 13.47 8.03
Note 7 : Inventories Rs. in lacs
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 01 1
Consumable stores and spares {at cost) 1,012.23 87161 1,023.72
Total 101223 B71.61 1,023.73
Mote 8 : Investments (Current) Rs. in lacs
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
No of Units Rs in Lacs No of Units Rs in Lacs No of Units Rs In Lacs
Investments at fair value through profit or loss
Investment in mutual funds - (Quoted)
L&T Liquid Fund - Regular Growth - - §,201,580.64 2,326.49
5Bl Liquid Fund - Regular Growth - - 115,446.25 2,223.68 b -
Aditya Birla Cash Plus - Regular Growth - - 932,588.34 242858 - -
Mirae Cash Mangement Fund - Regular Growth . - 544,962.67 1,516.27 -
BNP Paribas liquid Fund growth - - 532,260.06 1,B19.83 -
Total - - 10,314.85 -
Summary
Aggregate amount of quoted Investments and market value thers: - 10,314.85
Mote 9 : Trade receivables Rs, In lacs
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
Trade receivables (Unsecured, considerad good) (Refer note 9.1 below) 1,934.88 2,093,22 3.316.36
Total ) 1,934.88 2.093.22 3,316.36
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J5W Steel Processing Centres Limited
Motes to the Financial Statement as at and for the year ended 31 March 2013

Mote 9.1: Ageing of receivables that are past due Rs. In lacs
Particulars As at As at As at

31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
Within credit period 1,038.23 687.72 630.28
0-50 days - 1,00%.26 1,045.56
61-90 days 896.565 396.24 1,640.52

Total 1,934.88 2,093.22 3,316.36

The credit period on sale of goods and services ranges from 30 to 60 days with or without security. Mo interest is charged on trade recelvables upto the
end of the credit period. Trade recelvables are mainly due from related parties, There has been na significant change in the credit quality of receivables
past due for more than 180 days. The history of trade receivables shows no allowance for bad and doubtful debts,

Mote 10A : Cash and cash equivalents _Rs. In lacs
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2018 01 April 2017 _
Balances with banks
-In Current Accounts 126.98 54,76 443.46
- In deposits with original maturity of less than three months B50.00 G 3
Cash on hand 0.37 0.39 1.42
Total 777.35 55.15 444,88
— —— _— ]
Mote 108 : Other bank balances Rs. in lacs
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
Balances with Banks
- Fixed deposits with criginal maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 - . 5,375.69
months
- In margin moneay 39.11 38.11 37.93
Total 39.11 39.11 %&I.EZ
Mote 11 : Other financial assets { Unsecured ) Rs. in lacs
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
Interest receivable on fixed deposits 533 2.53 84,08
Export Benefits receivable 27.93 29.57
Indirect tax balances/recoverable/credits 31.79 37.11 -
Total 65.05 69.21 84.08
——————
Mote 12 : Other current assets | Unsecured ) Rs. in lacs
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 Ma rch 2018 01 April 2017
Advance to a related party (Refer note 29) 0.75 16.06 6.42
Advances to suppliers 85.77 35.54 137.69
Export Benefits receivable 5.26 66,21 146.27
Indirect tax balances/recoverable/credits - - 202.80
Prepaid expenses 16.30 15.54 12,47

Total e 108.08 133.35 505.65




I5W Steel Processing Centres Limited
Motes to the Financial Statement as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

Mote 13 : Equity share capital Rs. in lacs
Particulars As at As at As at

31 March 2019 31 Merch 2018 01 April 2007

{a) Authorised :

50,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00

Total 5.000.00 5:000.00 5,000.00
{b) Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:

50,000,000 equity shares of Rs, 10 each 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00

Total 5,000.00 5,000,00 5,000.00

{c) Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year :

Equity share :

Outstanding at the baginning of the year {nos.} 50,000,000 50,000,000 50,000,000
Outstanding at the end of the year {nos.) 50,000,000 50,000,000 50,000,000
Cutstanding at the baginning of the vear (Rs. in lacs) 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
OQutstanding at the end of the year {Rs. In lacs) 5,000,00 5,000.00 5,000.00

[d) Rights attached to equity shares
The Company has a single class of equity shares. Each shareholder s eligible for one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity sharsholders are
eligible to recelve the remaining assets of the Company after distributien of all preferential amou nts, in preportion to thelr shareholding.

(e} Shares held by the Holding company
Out of equity shares issued by the Company shares held by holding company are as below:

Particulars MNo. of Shares % of shares  No. of Shares % of shares Mo. of Shares % of shares

Equity Share

15\ Steel Limited | The Holding company) 50,000,000 100% 50,000,000 _100% 50000000 100%
{f) Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company is set out below: fts, In lacs

Particulars As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018 As at April 1, 2017

Equity share Mo. of Shares % of shares  No. of Shares % of shares Mo. of Shares % of shares

ISW Steel Limited {Including nominees) 50,000,000 100% 50,000,000 1008 50,000,000 100%

As per the records of the company including Its register of sharehalders / members and the dedaration received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest the
above shareholding represents both legal and benefical ownership of shares,

Note 14 : Other equity As. in lacs
Particulars Asat As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017

Retained earnings 4,929.50 14,712.08 12,279.07
Other comprehensive income:
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit plans 12,80} 0.38 -

Total 4,926.90 14,712.46 12,179.07




ISW Steel Processing Centres Limited

Notes to the Financial Statement as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

Mote 15 : Provisions (Nen current) Rs. in lacs
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for compensated absences 27.86 23.04 30.16
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 31) 72,61 60.95 62.99
Total 100.47 83.99 93.15
MNote 16 : Trade payables Rs. in lacs
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
Trade payables 27298 517.88 622.09
Total 272.98 517.88 622.09
Trade payables other than acceptances are normally settled with 1 to 180 days paﬁrmeﬁt terms. =
Disclosure pertaining to micro, small and medium enterprises (as per information available with the Company) :
Rs in Lacs
Description As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March  As at 01 April 2017
2018
(1) Principal amount due outstanding as at the end of accounting ye: - 9.569 10.52
(i) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid as at the end of accountit - - -
(iii) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of payment
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day - - -
{iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the year - - -
{v} Interest due and payable for the period of delay = - -
(vi) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the - 0.51 0.08
end of accounting year.
{vii) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in - .51 0.08
succeeding year
Note 17 : Other financial liabilities {Current) Rs. in lacs
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
Payable to employees 53.40 58.62 -
Others 3.27 3.66 7.98
Total - 56.67 62.28 798
Mote 18 : Other current liabilities Rs. in lacs
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
Statutory liabilities 93.28 123.14 3151
Others 1.02 6.41 39.64
Total = _ 94.30 129,55 71.15
Note 19 : Provisions {Current) Rs. in lacs
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for compensated absences 2.59 2.16 2.85
__ Provision for gratuity (Refer note 31) 2.19 1.82 1.50
& Fotal e 4,78 3.98 4.75
o ./ .d-'_lt':..l:
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I5W Steel Processing Centres Limited

Motes to the Financial Statement as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

Mote 20 : Revenue from contracts with customers Rs in Lacs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
{a) Sales of services
lob work processing 5,454.83 5.566.81
(b) Sales of products
Domestic sales (coils) - 68.65
Total (a+b) 5,454.83 5.635.46
Note 21 : Other incoma Rs in Lacs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Interest Income 3.21 348,58
Met gain on sale of investments 158.61 72.59
Net gain on fair valuation of investments through profit or loss . 49.26
Provisions/liabilities no longer required written back (net} 53.58 31,12
Miscellaneous income 0.19 0.01
Total 215,59 502.56
Mote 22 : Changes in inventories of finished goods Rs in Lacs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Opening stock :
Finished goods - 83.88
Less:
Closing stock:
Finished goods - ’
Changes In Inventories of finished goods - 83.88
Mote 23 : Employee benefits expense Rs in Lacs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Salaries and wages 325.86 443,38
Contribution to provident fund (Refer note 31) 13.92 15,31
Gratuity expense (Refer note 31 ) B.36 8.89
Staff welfare expenses 4.59 4.80
ESOP expenses 23.42 ¥
Total 376.25 472.48




J5W Steel Processing Centres Limited

Notes to the Financial Statement as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

MNote 24 : Finance costs Rs in Lacs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Interest on income tax 0.44 44 83
Other borrowing costs » 1.29
Total 0.44 46,22
MNote 25 ; Other expenses Rs in Lacs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Consumption of stores and spares 455.20 425.68
Repairs and maintenance -
(a) Plant and equipment 762,34 741.31
(b) Others 117.62 102.11
Ocean freight - 212
Rent (Refer note 30 and 36) 0.99 0.99
Insurance 11.68 10.92
Rates and taxes 2.84 5.39
Legal and professional charges 161.27 135.35
Payment to auditars (Refer note 25.1 below) 17.21 3267
Met loss on foreign currency transaction and translation (0.48) 11.48
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility (Refer note 5.2 below) 68.48 65.99
Loss on discard of Property Plant and Equipment (net) 15.89 -
Miscellaneous expenses 20,24 35.38
Total 1,633.28 1,569.43
MNote 25.1: Payment to auditers (excluding tax) Rs in Lacs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
a) As audit fees 12.50 14.00
b) For Other Services (Previous year figure includes 10 lacs relating services rendered in
earlier years 4.50 18.35
¢} Qut of pocket expenses 0.21 0.32
Total 17.21 32.67
Mote 25.2: Corporate social responsibility Rs in Lacs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
a) Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year. 66.00 65.99
b) Amount spent during the year on
(i} Construction/acquisiton of any asset 68.48 £5.99
(i} on purpose other than (i} above -
Out of above CSR Expenditure:
(i} Ameunt paid in cash 60.40 19,33
{lijamount yet to be paid in cash 8.08 A6.66




I5W Steel Processing Centres Limited
Notes to the Financial Statement as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

Note 26 : Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

Rs. in lacs
Particulars As at 31 March As at 31 March
2019 2018
a) Disputed claims (excluding interest, if any) in respect of
i} Excise duty 264.16 264.16
if} Service tax 280.60 324.54
Total 544.76 588.70

a) Excise duty cases includes disputes pertaining to availment of cenvat credit
b} Service tax cases includes disputes pertaining to valuation methodology

b) Commitments
At 31 March 2019, estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for | net of advances)
is Rs. 194.52 lacs (31 March 2018 - Rs. 50.90 lacs).

Note 27 : Segment Reporting

The Company is in the business of manufacturing and processing steel products having similar economic characteristics. Steel
processing business is regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker for assessment of Company's performance and
resource allocation.

The information relating to revenue from external customers and location of non-current assets of jts single reportable segment is as
under;
a) Revenue from contracts with customer

Rs. In lacs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Domestics 5,454.83 5,635.46
Export " E
Total 5,454.83 5,635.46

Revenue from contracts with customers have been allocated on the basis of location of customers.

b. Non current assets
All non-current assets of the Company are located in India.

c. Customer contributing more than 10% of revenue Rs. In lacs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

15W Steel Limited 5,454.83 5,635.46

MNote 28 : Additional information

A) Value of imports on CIF basis Rs. in lacs

Description For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Stores and spares 141.63 33.37




15W Steel Processing Centres Limited
Notes to the Financial Statement as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

Note 29
Related party disclosures

A. Relationships

a) Holding company:
ISW Steel Limited

b) Key managerial personnel (KMP):

Mr Jayant Acharya

Mr Umesh Rai (w.e.f. 19 January 2018)

Mr Sanjay Jayram

Mr Gajraj Singh Rathore (upto 19 January 2018)
Mr. Tapas Chakrabarty (upto 31 October 2017)
Mr Manish Mathur

Mr Anjaneyalu Chitloor (w.e.f. 1 November 2017)

c) Enterprises over which KMP and relatives of such personnel exercise significant influence:
ISW IP Holdings Private limited

Jindal 5teel & Power Limited

ISW Foundation

Jindal Vidya Mandir




15W Steel Processing Centres Limited
Motes to the Financial Staterment as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

B, Transactions with refated parties for the year ended Rs. in lacs
Enterprises aver which KMP and
Helding company relatives of such personnel Total
Particulars exercise significant influence
FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-1% Fy 2017-18
Income from processing charges
J5W Steel Limited 545483 5.566.81 s - 5,454,83 5,.566.81
Domestic sabes [colls)
15\ Steal Limibed - 63.65 - - - G865
Rent
J5W Steel Limited 0.59 0.9% - = 059 0.99
Corporate soclal responsibility expenses
J5W Foundation - . 12.068 0.07 12,06 007
Security Deposit
J5W IP Holdings Private Limited - - 0.75 - 0.75
Interest income
15\ Projects Limited = - - 56.71 - 56.71
Loan given
J5W Projects Limited - = = 10,000.00 - 10,000.00
Loan given received back
JS5W Projects Limited - - £ 10,000u00 . 10,000.00
Compensation to key managerial personnel Rs. In lacs
Particulars F¥ 2018-19 FY 2017-18
Remuneration
hr Manish Mathur 7099 65.43
Mr Anjaneyalu chitloor 75.80 31.57
Mr. Tapas Chakrabarthy (Upto 31.10.2017) - 29.13
Mr Umesh Rai 143.70 28.07
Mr, Gajara] Singh Rathore (Upte 19.01.2018) . 167.43
Total 250,49 322.03

Note (I} As the future liability for gratuity s provided on an actuarial basis for the company as & whale, the amount pertaining to individual is not ascertainable and therefore not
inchsded above.

T Amount due toffrom related parties Rs. in lacs
Particulars Holding company Enterprises gver which KMP and Total
As at As at As at As at Az at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 | 31 March 2005 |31 March 2048 | 31 March 2018 | 31 March 2018
Trade receivables - 1 I 2= Warch SULE |
JSW Steel Limited 1,534.88 2,083.22 - - 1,534,588 2,083.22
Trade payabie
15W Foundation - # o1 0.01 QD1 001
lindal Vidya Mandir - 0.06 - 0,06
Other current assets - advances
lindal Stee! & Power Ltd - . - 16.06 - 16.06
J5W IF Holdings Private Limited = - 0.75 . 0.75 -
Termg and condltiong
Sales;

The sales to related parties are in the ordinary course of business. Sales transactions are based on memorandum of understanding signed with related parties. For the Period
ended 31 March 2019, the Company has not recarded any loss allowances for trade recaivables from related parties.
Eﬂli! AS85]

The purchases fram related parties are in the ordinary course of business as per agreed commercial terms.

MNote 30
Operating leases

i) As lessee
Company has taken Land as lease for the period of 10 vears. The Company does not have an option to purchase the leasad land at the expiry of the lease period.

Payments recognised a3 an axpense

For the year For the year
ended 31  [ended 31 March

IMarch 2019 2018 |
099 0,59
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Mote 31

A Defined contribution plans:

The Company operates defined contribution plans for all gualifying employess through government administered fund. The Company s required to contribute a
specified percentage of payroll cost to the fund.

Company's contributions to the provident fund recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss is Rs, 13.92 lacs for the year ended March 31, 2019 (for the year
ended March 31, 2018 : Rs. 15.31 lacs). (Refer note 23)
B Defined benefit plan:

The Company sponsors unfunded defined benefit plans for all qualifying employees. The level of benefits provided depends on the members length of services and
salary at retirement age, The gratuity plan is covered by The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,

Under the gratuity plan, the eligible employees are entitled to post-retirement benefit at the rate of 15 days salary for each year of service until the retirement age

of 58 and 0. The vesting period for Gratuity as payable under The Payment of Gratuity Act is 5 years. The gratuity liability is not funded and the same is
accounted for based on third party actuarial valuation,

Under the compensated absences plan, leave encashment is payable to all eligible employees on separation from the Company due to death, retirement,
superannuation or resignation at the rate of dally salary, as per current accumulation of leave days.

The plans in india typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: interest rate risk, salary risk and langevity risk.

Interest risk A decrease in the discount rate which is linked to the Government security rate will increase the present
value of the liability requiring higher provision .

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability Is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan
participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

Longavity risk The present value of the define benefit plan liability Is calculzted by reference to the best estimate of the
mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment, An increase in the life expectancy of
the plan participant will increase the plans lability.

Mo other post-retirement benefits are provided to these em ployees.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at Mareh 31, 2019 by qualified independent actuary.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit
method,

{i} Gratuity {unfunded):

a) Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet

Rs. in lacs
Description 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
Opening balance 62.77 6485
Service cost 3.43 3.79
Interest cost 4.94 5.20
Transfer out adjustment - {54.08)
Liability Transferred in / Acquisitions . 43.50
Financial assumptions 0.48 0.68
Experience adjustment 3.18 {1.21)
L Closing balance {refer Note 15 & 13) 74.80 62.77
b) Expenses durlng the year Rs. in lacs
Description 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
Service cost 3.43 3.79
Interest cost 4.594 5.20
Component of defined benefit cost recognised In the statement of profit & loss (refer note 23) 8.36 8.99
Remeasurement of net defined benefit lia bility
- Actuarial (gain)/loss on defined bensfit obligation 3.67 {0.53)
Component of defined benefit cost recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 3.67 {0.53)
Total 12.03 B.46




J5W Steel Processing Centres Limited
Notes to the Financial Statement as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

€} Actual return on plan assets
Since gratuity plan is nen-funded, hence figures in respect of plan assets are nil.

d} Principal actuarial assumptions

Particulars 31 March 2019] 31 March 2018
Discount rate 7.78% 7.87%
Salary escalation rate 6.00% B.00%
Attrition rate 2.00% 2.00%
Indian Assured Indian Assured
Maortality rate during employement Lives Mortality Livas Maortality
(2006-08) (2006-08)
) Experience adjustments fs. in lacs
Particulars 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Defined benefit obligation 74.80 62,77 64,89 57.77 48.63
Deficit 74.80 6277 64.39 ST.77 48.53
Experience loss adjustments on plan liabilities 3.18 11.21) (2.61) 2.32 3.24

f) The company expects to contribute Rs. 2,18 lacs as on March 31, 2019 (Rs. 1.82 laes as on March 31,

the actuarial valuer.

g} In assessing the Company's post retirement liabilities,
Indian assured lives mortality {2006-08) ultimate.

h) The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniarity,

supply and demand in the employment market,

i) The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at

2018} to its gratuity plan for the next vear as determined by

the Company monitors mortality assumptions and uses up-to-date mortality tables, the base being the

promotion and other relevant factors, such as

the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the

obligations,

b) Compensated Absence

Particulars 31 March 2019) 31 March 2018
Present value of unfunded obligation (Rs in lacs) 30.44 25,20
Expenses recognised in Statement of profit and loss [Rs in lacs) 5.76 4.05
Discount rate 7.78% TET%
Salary escalation rate 6.00% 6.00%

Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity

analyses below have been determined based on
halding all other assumptions constant,

reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while

Rs. In lacs
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate {1% movement) {5.11) 5.78 {4.59) 5,20
Future salary growth (1% movement) 5.82 [5.23) 525 {4.71}
Rate of employes turnover (1% movement) 0.68 (0.77) 0.65 {0.72)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may net be representative of the actual
assumptions would occur in

Furthermere, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis,

change

in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in
isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the prajected unit credit

methad at the end of the reporting period, which s the same as that applied in caleulating the defined benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet,

There was na change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years,
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Note 32
Income taxes

Indian companies are subject to Indian income tax on a standalone basis, Entity is assessed to tax on taxable
the entity profit or loss is subject to the higher of the regular Income tax payable or the minimum alternative s ("MAT).

and ending on March 31, Far each fiscal year,

Statutory Income taxes are assessed based on book profits prepared under

of the (Indlan) Income tax Act, 1951.

holidays, the setoff of tax losses and depreciation carried forward and retirement benefit costs, Statu
cess. MAT is assessed on book profits adjusted for certain items as campared to the adjustmants fo
MAT far the fiscal year 2018-19 is 21.54%. MAT paid in excess of regular

years succeeding the assessment year in which MAT credit arlses subject to the limits prescribed,

{2} Amounts recognised the Statement of Profit and Loss

prefits determined for each fiscal year beginaing en April 1

generally accepted accounting principles in India adjusted in accordance with the provisions
Such adjustments generally relate to depreciation of fixed #ssets, disallowances of certain provisions and accruals, deduction for tax
tory income tax is charged at 25% plus a surcharge and education
llowed for assessing regular income tax under narmal provisions,
income tax during a year can be set off against regular income taxes within a peried of fifteen

A reconciliatien of income tax expense applicable to accounting profit

indicated are a5 follows:

Rs. In lacs

Particulars For the year ended | For the year
31 March 2019 | ended 31 March
Current tax 5956.88 987.47
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 13,48 "
Deferred tax 13.15 [116.03)
Tax expense for the year 983.51) B7L44
Effiactive Income tax rate 30,20%) 25.60%

/ (loss) before tax 8t the statutory incorme tax rate to recognised income tax expense for the year

Bs. In lacs
Particulars For the year ended | For the year
31 March 2019 | ended 31 March
2018
Prafit before tax (Rs. in lacs) 3,256.55 3.404.45
Tax rate In India 29.12% 23.84%
Expected income tax expense at statutory rate (Rs. in lacs) 948,31 981.84
Effect of tax on axpenses allowed disallowed for tax purpose (Rs, in lacs) {55.70) (125.20)
Effect of tax due to change in tax retes 7742 14,30
Tan effect on prior year items/adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 13.48 -
Tax expense for the year (Rs. in lacs) 983.51 BTL44
(b} Amounts recognised in othar comprehensive income Rs. in lacs
Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2019 For the year ended March 31, 2018
Before tax | Tax (expense) | Metoftax | Before tax Tax (expensa) Met of tax
benefit henefit
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Rlemeasurements of defined benefit liability/[asset) 13.67] 1.07 {260} 0.53 0.15 038
Total __13.67) 1.07 [2.60 0.53 D015 038
(b) Mavement in deferred tax balances as on 31 March 2019
Significant components of defarred tax assets/(liabilities) recagnised In the financial statement are as follows:
Rz, in lacs
Particulars Net balance | Recognised in Recognised | Deferred tax Deferred tax Met
01 April 2018 | profit or loss n OC1 Bssel liablity
Deferred tax assets/{liabilities) balance in relation to -
Property, plant and equipment {1,170.72) (29.79) - - [1,200.51) {1,200.51)
Foraign exchange differences - . - - - :
Provisions for stores & Spares (show moving items) 151 11.24 12.75 12,75
Government grant - - . £
Expenses disallowable u/fs 40{a)(ia) 071 {0.71) “ 1
Employee benefits 25.62 3.96 1.407 30.65 - 30,65
Tau assets/(Liabilities) (1.142.89) (15.29) 1.07 43.40 {1,200.51}] {1.157.10)|
(€] Movement in defarred tax balances as on 31 March 2018
Rs, in lacs
Particulars Met balance | Recognised in | Recognised | Deferred tax Deferred tax MNet
01 April 2017 | profit er loss in OC1 asset liability
Deferred tax assets/(Habilities) balance in relation to -
Property, plant and equipment {1,047.78) (12294} - (1,170.72) [1,170.72)
Foreign exchange differences 5.31 (6.31) - = #
Provisions for stores & Spares (show moving items) 111 040 1.51 - 1.51
Government grant {252.37) 25237 - - .
Expenses disallowable u/s 4al{la) 0.71 0.71 - 0.7
Employee benefits 33.66 {7.89) (0.15] 25,62 - 25.62
Tan 5 /[Llabilities 11,259.07) 116.34 [0.15) 27.84 {1,170,72 141.?
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Note - 33 Employes share based payment plans
ESOP SCHEME 2016:

The Board of Directors of 15W Steel Limited(Holding Company) at its maating held an 29th lanuary, 2016, formulated the ISWSL EMPLOYEES STOCK OWNERSHIP PLAN 2016
["ESCH Flan"). At the said mecting, the Board authorized the ESOP Committes for the superintendence af the ESOP Plan,

The said scheme |s for permanent employeas of the Company and its subsidiaries in the grade of L16 (AVP) and above Including any director except to any emploves who is a
promoter or a director who either himseif or through relatives or through anybody directly or indirectly holds more than 10% of the outstanding equity shares of the Comgpany.
The Employees Stock Ownership Plan is effective fram 15t Aprll, 2015,

Lst Grant under ESOP Scheme 2016
The eligible employees can exercise the option frem May 17, 2016 till March 31, 2019 (for 50% of grant) and May 17, 2016 till March 21, 2020 {for remaining S0% of grant}

A Total of 14,130 options for equity shares having face value of Re, 1 par share were granted to the eligible employees of the Company.
The Fair Value of option on the date of each grant s determined by using Black Scholes maodel,

2nd Grant under ESOP Schame 2016
The eliglble emaloyees can exercise the option from May 16, 2017 till Masch 31, 2020 (for 50% of grant) and May 16, 2017 till March 21, 2021 {for remaining 50% of grant)

A votal of 1,12,447 options for equity shares having face value of Re. 1 per share were granted to the efigitle emplovees of the Company.
The Fair Value of optian on the date of each grant is determined by using Black Schales moded,

Brd Grant under ES0P Schemea 2016
The efigible employees can exercise the option from May 15, 2018 il March 31, 2021 {for 50% of grant) and May 15, 2018 tifl March 31, 2022 (for remalning 50% of grant)

A total of 38,323 options for equity shases having face value of Be. 1 per share were granted to the eligible employees of the Company.

The Fair Value of option on the date of each grant is determined by using Black Schales model,
The details of the Share based payment plan are as follows:

ES0OF 2016 ESOP 2016 ESOP 2016
Particulars Year 1st Grant [AVP & Above)  2nd Grant (AVP & Above) 3rd Grant [AVP &
— Bbowst |

Date of grant May 17, 2016 May 16, 2017 May 15, 2018
Opening Balance as on April 1, 2018 6,795 57,384 -

Agril 01, 2017 14,130 . -
Allotted March 31, 2019 . : 39,323

March 31, 2008 - 112447 -
Transfer to JSW Steel March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018 14,130 102,374 -
Transfer from JSW Steel March 31, 2018 - - -

March 31, 201E E,795 47,291 -
Forfeited during the pericd March 31, 2019 . - -

March 31, 2018 . - =
Exercised during the period March 31, 2019 - - -

March 31, 2018 . = =
Qutstanding as on March 31, 2019 6,795 57,364 39,323

March 31, 2018 6,795 57,364
Exercisable as on March 31, 2019 - -

March 31, 2018 - -

17-May-16til 31-Mar-19  15-May-17 till 31-Mar-20 zﬁ::;:: 3:;_':';’"
March 31, 2018 [for 50% of grant) and 17-  {for S0% of grant] and 16-

May-16 till 31-Mar-20 (for  May-17 tll 31-Mar-21 (for ::':ﬁ‘;':;:’;:'.' 1;
remaining 50% of grant]  remaining 50% of grant "
Vesting Period k e . R 50% of grant)
17-May-16 till 31-Mar-19  16-May-17 till 31.-Mar-20
(for 50% of grant} and 17- [for 50% of grant) and 16-
March 31, 2018 May-16 till 31-har-20 (for  May-17 till 31-Mar-21 (for
remaining 50% of grant) remaining 50% of grant)

hMethod of setthernent Equity Equity Equity,
Exercise Price 103.65 161,36

Fair Value as on the Date of . i
Grant 57,48 104.04 167.15
Notes:-

Wote 1 - The company has recognised an expense af Rs, 23,42 lacs(March 31, 2019) tewards share based payments transactions based on charge received from holding
comgany (e ISW Stzel Limited,) corresponding liability i recognised in the baoks of Hodding company.

Hote I - The share options outstanding at the end of the vear has & weighted average exercise price of fs. 103,65 for 1st Grant under ESOF Scheme 2016, Rs. 161,36 for nd
Grant under ESOP Scheme 2016 and fs. 253,24 for 3rd Grant under ESOP Scherme 2016,
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Mote 34
Financial instrumants = Falr values and risk managerment

a) Categories of financial instruments

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Carrying values Fair values| Carrying values Falr walues
Finangial assets
Maasured at amortised cost
Non Current
Investments {Government sacurities) - 0.10 0.10
Current
Trade receivables 1.934.88 1,934.88 2.093,22 2,083.22
Cash and cash equivalents TI.38 JTLEE 55.15 55,15
Other bank balances 30.11 39.11 38.11 38,11
Qther financial assets 65,05 B5.05 69,21 69,21
Measured at falr value through profit or boss
Impastments = = 10,314.85 10.314.85
Total financial assets 1,816.39 2,816.39 12,571.64 12 571.64
Financial lizbilities
Current
Trade payables 27298 27298 517.88 517.BB
Other financial llabilities S6.67 56.67 62,28 62,28
otal financlal Habilities 329.65 329.65 SHO.16 580.16
Lavel wise disclosure of financial Instruments
Financials Instruments measured at fair value
Particulars Asat31March | Asat31 March Level Valuation Td'm::ul and key
2019 2018 b
|Investment in mutual funds - 10,314.85 2 | Based on the NAV prescribed by
the mutual funds

The Management consider that the carrying amounts of the remaining financial assats and financial liabilitles such as trade receivables, cash and cash

equivalents, other bank balances, interest receivable, trade payable,
term nature,

b Financial risk management

recognised In the financial statements approximates their fair value, due to their short

Thee Company has a Risk Management Committee established by its Board of Directars for overseeing the Risk Management Framework and developing and
monitoring the Company's risk management policles. The risk management paolicles are establishad to ensure timely identification and evaluation of risks,
serting acceptable risk thresholds, identifying and mapping controls against these risks, moniter the risks and their limits, improve risk awareness and
transparency. Risk management policles and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in the market conditions and the Company's activities 1o

provide refizble Information to the Management and the Board to evaluate the adequacy of the risk management frameweork in relation to the risk faced by
the Company.

T risk management policies alms to mitigate the following risks arising from the financial instruments:
{i) Currency risk

H) Credit risk and,

{ii] Liguidity risk.

(I} Currency risk
The Company’s functional currency is Indian Rupess (INR). The Company undertakes transactions denominated in forelgn currencies: consequeantly, exposure

to exchangs rate fluctuations arise. Valatility in exchange rates affects the Company's revenue from EXport markets and the costs of imports, primarily in
relation to stores and spares. The Company is exposed to exchange rate risk under its trade portfalin,

The carrying amounts of the Company's monetary asssts and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting perlod are as follows:

Rs. in lacs
Particulars As at 31 March 2019
UsD MR Taotal
Financial assets
Non - current Investiments = & -
Trade receivable 1,934.88 1,934.88
Current Investments = =
Cash and cash equivalents 77735 77735
Other bank balances 39,11 3%.11
Other financial assets 65.05 65.05
2,816.3 2,816.39

Financial Liabilitles : E
Trade payables II' *{ MUMBAL <) 853 264,45 27298
Other financizl Babilites | =R Ja ﬂ'{. - 5667 56.67

N A &2 8.53 321.12 328,65
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Rs. in [acs
Particulars 31 March 2018
uso INR Total
Financial assets
Imnastments - Q.10 0.10
Trade recelvable . 2,003.22 2,083.22
Current investments 10,314.85 10,314.85
Cash and cash equivalents . 55.15 55,15
Other bank balances . EER A 38.11
Cther financial assets - 65.21 69.21
- 12,571.64 12,571.64
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables BAST 509.31 517.88
Otiver financial liabilities - 62.28 62.28
8.57 57159 580.16
Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Company’s sensitivity to a 1% increase and decrease in the INR against the relevant foreign currencies. 1% is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and rapresents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes anly outstanding foreign currency denominated manetary items and adjusts their translation
at the year-end for a 1% change in foreign currency rates, with all other variables held constant, & positive number below indicates an increase in profit or
equity where INR strangthens 1% against the relevant currency. For a 1% weakening of INR against the relevant currency, there would be a comparable impact
on prafit ar equity, and the balances below would be negative,

Rs.in lacs
Particulars Profit or {loss)
USD
Effect in INR Stre enin Weaken
31 March 2019
1% Movement
Trade receivabla - -
Trade Payables (0.0} f.ag
31 March 2018
1% Movement
Trade receivable

Trade Payables (0.09) 0.09

(i} Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default an its contractual obligations resulting In financial loss to the Company. The Company has adopted
& policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, a5 a maans of mitigating the risk of financial
loss from defaults.

Company's credit risk arises principally fram the trade receivables, loans, and eash & cash equivalents.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk s managed centrally by the company and subject to established policy, proceduras and contral relating to customer credit risk
management, The outstanding trade receivables are ragularly monitored and appropriate acticn is taken for collection of overdue receivables.

Apart frem JSW Steel Limited, the largest customer of the Campany, the company does net have significant risk EXPOSUre o any dngle counterparty,
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Cash and cash equivalent

The Company attempts to limit the credit risk by only dealing with reputable banks,

ili) Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk refars to the risk of financial distress or extraordinary high financing costs arising due to shortage of liguid funds In 2 situation where business
conditions unexpectedly deterlorate and requiring financing. The Company generates sufficient cash flow for operations, which together with the avallable

cash and cash equivalents provide liguidity in the short-term and long-tarm.
facilities and reserve borrowing facilitles, by continuously monitaring foreca

and liabllities.

Tha fallowing table detalls the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking
st and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financlal assets

liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date an which the Company is required to pay.

Rs. in lacs

|Particulars Level Carrylng amount Total Less than 1 year 1-5 years More than 5
YEars

As at 31 March 2019
Trade payables 3 27298 27398 27198 - -
Other financial Habilities 3 56,67 56.67 56,67 -
As at 31 March 2018
Trade payables E] 317.88 517.88 517.88
Other financial llabilities 3 GL2B 62.28 62.28
The following table details the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial assets with agreed repayment periods.

Rs. in lacs
Particulars Level Carrying amount Tatal Less than 1 year 1-5 years Mare than 5

- L

As at 31 March 2019
Investments . - - -
Trade receivables 3 1,934.88 1,534.88 193488
Cash and cash equivalents ! 77735 777,35 T71.35 -
Other bank balances 3 39.11 35.11 - 39,11
Other financial assets 3 65.05 £5.05 65.05 -
As at 31 March 2018
Investments 3 10,314.95 10,314.95 10,314 .85 010
Trade receivables 3 2,093.22 2,053,223 209322 -
Cash and cash equivalents 3 5515 55.15 55.15 -
Other bank balances 3 38,11 38.11 38.11 -
Other financial assats 3 £9.21 £9.21 69,21 -




J5W STEEL PROCESSING CENTRES LIMITED

Notes to the Financlal Statement as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

Mote 35
Restated Financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2018
Rs in Lacs
Reported Amount Restated Ameount
Motes as at 31 March Restatement as at 31 March
2018 2018
Il ASSETS
Non-current assets
{a} Property, plant and equipment 4 8,046.42 8,026.42
{b) Capital work in Progress - - -
(b)) Financial assets - Investments 5 0,10 0.10
{e} Current tax assets (net) 266,30 - 266.30
{d) Other non-current assets [ 13.47 - 13.47
Total nen - current assets 8,326.29 - 8,326.29 |
Current assets
(&) Inventories Fi 87161 - 87161
{b) Financial assets e
il Investments 8 10,314.85 - 10,314.85
iiy Trade receivables 9 2,093.22 - 2,093.22
iii} Cash and cash equivalents 104 55.15 55.15
iv] Bank balances other than (ill) above 108 35.11 - 3811
v} Loans 10 =
v} Other financials assets 11 69.21 69.21
{c} Other current assets 12 133.35 133.35
Total current assets 13,576.50 = 13,576.50
Total assets 21,902.79 - 21,902.79
Il. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a} Equity share capital 13 5,000.00 - 5.000.00
(B} Other equity 14 14,376.06 336.40 14,712.46
Total equity 19,376.06 336.40 19,712.46
Mon - current liabilities
la)  Financial liakilities -Borrowings ¢ =
{a) Provisions 15 83.99 - 83.99
(o] Deferred tax liabilities [net) 32 1371.46 228.57 1,142.89
Total non - current liabilities 1,455.45 228.57 1,226.88
Current liabllities
(a} Financial fiabilities
i} Trade payables 16
a) Total cutstanding, dues of micro and 9.69 - 9.69
small enterprises
b} Total outstanding, dues of creditors 508.19 508.19
other than micre and small enterprises
i} Other financial llabilities 17 62.28 62.28
(b} Other current liabilities 13 129.55 - 129,55
{e}  Current tax Habilities (net) 357.59 107.83 245.76
{d}  Provisions 13 3.98 - 3.98
Total current liabilities 1,071.28 107.83 953.45
Total llabilities 2,526.73 336.40 2,190.33
Total ;g;uly_ and liabilities 21.902.79 672.80 21,902.79
Mote :

Apart from above adjustments, net difference between
authorities ameuting to Rs 30.81 lacs for the period Fy

income tax provision as per books and income tax return filed with tax
11-12 to FY 16-17 have been adjusted in Other Equity as on 01 April 2017,
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Restated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Rs in Lacs
Reported Amt for Restated Amt for
Particulars Notes the year ended Restatement | the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2018
I. Revenue from contracts with customers 20 5,635.46 - 5,635.46
Il. Other income 21 502.56 - 502.56
1L, Tetal income (1+11) 6,138.02 - 6,138.02
IV, Expenses:
Changes in inventories of finished goods 22 83.88 83.88
Employee benefits expense 23 472.48 - 472,48
Finance costs 24 46.22 - 46.22
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 4 561.56 - 561.56
Other expenses 25 1,565.43 - 1,569.43
Total expenses 2,733.57 - 2,733.57
V. Profit before tax (I1l-1V) 3,404.45 - 3,404.45
V1. Tax expense: 3z
Current tax 1,186.41 198,94 98747
Deferred tax 112.21 (228.24) (116.03)
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods - - -
1,298.62 (427.18) 871.44
VII Profit for the year (V-VI) 2,105.83 427.18 2,533.01
VIl Other comprehensive income 31
Itermns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 053 - 0.53
(b} Income tax related to items that will not be (0.18) 0.03 (0.15)
reclassified to profit or loss
Total other comprehensive income 0.35 0.03 0.38
IX. Total comprehensive income for the year [VII+VIII) 2,106.18 427.21 2,533,139
X. Earnings per equity share of Rs. 10 each 36
Basic {In Rs) 4.21 = 5.07
Diluted (In Rs) 421 - 5.07

MNote:

1} In the FY 2017-18, the tax Expense was erroneously calculated using tax rate of 30% instead of 25% which has now been

rectified by restating prior tax EXpEnses.

2} Further the Company has reconcilied the amount of tax provision in the book
respective years. The excess/ shortfall of the provisions related to the previous

01 Apr 2017,

. Rl

LY

s with the income tax returns filed for the
years have been adjusted in Other Equity as on
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MNote 36

Earnings per share (EPS)

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended 31
31 March 2019 March 2018*

Profit for the year for equity sharehalders (A) (Rs. in lacs) 2,273.04 2,533.01

Welghted average number of shares for basic EPS (B) Nos 50,000,000 50,000,000

Waeighted average number of shares for diluted EPS (C) Nos 50,000,000 50,000,000

Earning per share - basic (A/B) {Rs. per share) 4,55 5.07

Earning per share - diluted (A/C) (Rs. per share) 4,55 5.07

Mominal value of equity shares (Rs. per share) 10.00 10.00

Note : There ks na dilution to Basic EPS as there are no dilutive potential equity shares.

* Restated

MNote 37

The Board of Directors of JSW Steel Limited ('Parent Company’} at their meeting held on 25 October 2018, considered and approved the Scheme of
Amalgamation pursuant to sections 230 - 232 and ather applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, providing for the merger of its whally
owned subsidiary, J5W Steel Processing Centre Limited, with the Parent Company. The Board of Directors of the Company has approved the merger
in their meeting held on 30 October 2018, In accordance with the scheme the Parent Company will take over all the assets and liabilities of the
Company on a going concern basis. The merger is subject to regulatory approvals.

Note 38
Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary,

MNote 39
Standards issued but not yet effective

Mew Standard Ind AS 116 Leases

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified by MCA on 30 March 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices thereta. Ind AS 116 is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019, Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under Ind
A5 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of ‘low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases
{l.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments
{i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the |ease term fi.e, the right-of-use asset). Lessees will
be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the leass liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certaln events (e.g. @ change in the lease term, a change in
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognise the
amaunt of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from today's accounting under Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases
using the same classification principle as in Ind AS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases,

The Company is in the process of evaluating the effect of these amendments on the financial statements,
Amendments to other Ind ASs-

i} Amendments to Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments:
The amendments notified to Ind AS 109 pertain to classification of a financial Instruments with prepayment feature with negative compensation,
Megative compensation arises where the terms of the contract of the financial instrument permit the holder to make repayment ar permit the

lender ar issuer ta put the Instrument ta the barrawer for repayment before the maturity at an amount less than the unpaid amounts of principal
and interest. Earller, there was no guidance on classification of such instruments,

According to the amendments, these types of instruments can be dassified as measured at amortised cost, or measured at fair value through profit

or loss, or measured at fair value through other comprehensive income by the lender or issuer if the respective conditions specified under Ind AS
109 are satisfied.

i} Amendments to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes:

The first amendment requires an entity to create a correspanding liability for Dividend Distribution Tax {DOT] when it recognises a liability to pay a
dividend. The liability for DDT shall be recorded in statement of profit & loss, other comprehensive income or equity, as the case may be.

The sw@_?Tendment relates to tax consequence of an item whaose tax treatment is uncertain, Tax treatment of an item is considered as
unlc;@nmﬁwﬂ_‘ re is uncertainty whether the relevant taxation authority will accept the tax treatment of that item or not,
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J5W Steel Processing Centres Limited
Motes to the Financial Statement as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

If there is uncertainty over tax treatment of an item an entity should predict the resolution of the uncertainty. If it Is prebable that the taxation
authority will accept the tax treatment, there will be no impact on the amount of taxable profits/losses, tax bases, unused tax losses/credits and tax
rates. In vice-versa case, the entity shall show the effect of the uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment on amount of related ltems by using
either the most likely outcome or the expected outcome of the uncertainty,

iii} Amendment to Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits:
The amendments to Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits relate to effects of plan amendment, curtailment and settlement. When an entity determines the
past service cost at the time of plan amendment or curtailment, it shall remeasure the amount of net defined benefit liability/asset using the

current value of plan assets and current actuarial assumptions which should reflect the benefits offered under the plan and plan assets before and
after the plan amendment, curtailment and settlement.
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